

PLANNING & SURVEY SOLUTIONS

Application for Planning Approval

Garden Centre

Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove

Prepared by Harley Dykstra Pty Ltd for ACN 605 729 995 Pty Ltd

PERTH

Level 1, 252 Fitzgerald Street, Perth PO Box 8110, Perth BC WA 6849 Albany Bunbury Busselton Kelmscott Perth

T: 08 9228 9291 F: 08 9495 1946

E: perth@harleydykstra.com.au www.harleydykstra.com.au

ACN 009 101 786 ABN 77 503 764 248



DOCUMENT REFERENCE

Control Version	Date	Status	Distribution	Comment
Α	27.04.2016	Draft	Client	For Review
В	13.05.2016	Final	Local Authority	Lodgement
С	16.11.2020	Final	Local Authority	Updated Report for Resubmission
D	5.03.2021	Final	Local Authority	Updated Report for Resubmission
Е	22.07.2021	Final	Local Authority	Updated Report following advertising

Prepared for:	ACN 605 729 995 Pty Ltd
Prepared by:	ВН
Reviewed by:	DM
Version:	Ε
Date:	22 July 2021
Job No & Name: 20843	

DISCLAIMER

This document has been prepared by HARLEY DYKSTRA PTY LTD (the Consultant) on behalf of ACN 605 729 995 Pty Ltd (the Client). All contents of the document remain the property of the Consultant and the Client except where otherwise noted and is subject to Copyright. The document may only be used for the purpose for which it was commissioned and in accordance with the terms of engagement for the commission.

This document has been exclusively drafted. No express or implied warranties are made by the Consultant regarding the research findings and data contained in this report. All of the information details included in this report are based upon the existent land area conditions and research provided and obtained at the time the Consultant conducted its analysis.

Please note that the information in this report may not be directly applicable towards another client. The Consultant warns against adapting this report's strategies/contents to another land area which has not been researched and analysed by the Consultant. Otherwise, the Consultant accepts no liability whatsoever for a third party's use of, or reliance upon, this specific document.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



CONTENTS

DOCUMENT REFERENCE	1
DISCIAIMER	1
CONTENTS	2
1 INTRODUCTION	3
1.1 PURPOSE OF APPLICATION	
2 LOCATION AND SURROUNDING LAND USE	
 2.1 LOCATION AND SITE DETAILS 2.2 SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USE	
3.1 OVERVIEW & BACKGROUND	
3.2 DESIGN AND IAYOUT 3.3 OPERATING HOURS & STAFFING	
3.3 OPERATING HOURS & STAFFING	
3.4 VEHICLES AND ACCESS	
3.6 LANDSCAPING	
3.7 PIANT AND EQUIPMENT	11
2 12	
3.8 DUST EMMISSIONS	
4 PLANNING FRAMEWORK	13
4.1 METROPOLITAN REGION SCHEME	
4.2 SHIRE OF KALAMUNDA – LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME No. 3	13
4.2.1 IAND USE PERMISSIBILITY	13
4.2.2 DEVELOPMENT SETBACKS	14
4.2.3 CARPARKING ANALYSIS	14
4.2.4 MAXIMUM NET LETTABLE AREA	15
4.2.5 SERVICE YARD & REFUSE STORAGE	15
4.3 SPP 3.7 PLANNING IN BUSHFIRE PRONE AREAS	15
5 CONCLUSION	

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 PURPOSE OF APPLICATION

This Development Application has been prepared by Harley Dykstra on behalf of the landowner, ACN 605 759 995 Pty Ltd, in relation to Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove (the "subject site").

The purpose of this application is to request planning approval for the establishment of a Garden Centre at the subject site. The Garden Centre is proposed on the south-west portion of the site fronting Welshpool Road East, for the display and retail sale of a range of landscaping supplies, garden products, ornaments and implements.

This current application is, for all practical purposes, consistent with an earlier proposal submitted to the City of Kalamunda on 17 May 2016. Due to issues relating to site access/egress, traffic management and drainage not being resolved at the time, the original application was ultimately deemed refused.

This current proposal is supported by additional engineering detail, which the City's Technical Services section have advised is supported 'in principle', therefore enabling this development application to be progressed.

A description of the site and surrounds, proposal details and rationale demonstrating compliance with the applicable planning framework is provided in the following report.

2 LOCATION AND SURROUNDING LAND USE

2.1 LOCATION AND SITE DETAILS

The subject site is located on the north side of Welshpool Road East, east of the Tonkin Highway. An Aerial Locality Plan is included at **Figure 1** below.



Figure 1 - Aerial Locality Plan (subject site outlined in blue)

(Source: PlanWA)

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



The particulars of the landholding and ownership details are outlined in Table 1. A copy of the

Certificate of Title for Lot 150 is attached at Appendix A.

Landowner:	ACN 605 729 995 Pty Ltd			
Lot No.	Vol/Folio	Plan/Diagram	Area (ha)	Road Name/No.
Lot 150	Vol. 1613 Fol. 607	Plan 3380	3.912	WEISHPOOL ROAD EAST

Table 1 – Land Details & Ownership

Lot 150 is approximately 3.9 hectares in area and has approximately 129m of frontage to Welshpool Road East, with primary access to the site via an existing crossover towards the western boundary. A sealed internal driveway provides vehicle access to an existing dwelling and outbuildings.

The south-western half of the site, over which the Garden Centre is proposed to be located, contains an existing dwelling, stables, outbuildings and other ancillary infrastructure. The north-western part of the site contains open grassed areas and scattered vegetation. Site photographs are included as **Plates 1** - **4** below.



Plate 1 - Existing Outbuilding to be used as Storage Shed

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove





Plate 3 - Former Stables to be used for Product Display

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove





Plate 4 - Former Stables to be used for Product Display

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



The rear (north-eastern) part of the site remains largely undeveloped. An aerial photograph of the site depicts the nature of existing land use (Figure 2).



Figure 2- Aerial Photograph (Source: PlanWA)

2.2 SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USE

Lot 150 is zoned "Rural Composite" under the Shire of Kalamunda Local Planning Scheme No. 3 (LPS 3). A Zoning Plan is included as **Figure 3** below which identifies the zoning of the site as well as the zoning and reserve designations over adjoining land.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove





Figure 3 - Zoning Plan (subject site outlined in red)

Immediately adjacent lots to the west are also zoned "Rural Composite" and comprise a landscaping supplies yard and animal establishment (Dog Kennels) on Lots 1 and 2 Welshpool Road East respectively. Lot 149, to the south-east of the site, accommodates a dwelling and equestrian training track.

To the immediate north of the site, the land is reserved for "Parks and Recreation" and has a Bush Forever designation. Welshpool Road East is an "Other" Regional Road where it abuts the subject site.

A Garden Centre currently operates on Lot 146 Welshpool Road East and a Stockfeeds Centre on Lot 101 (No. 14) Brentwood Road, Wattle Grove, to the south and south-east of the subject site.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



3 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED USE

3.1 OVERVIEW & BACKGROUND

This application seeks planning approval for a Garden Centre at Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Welshpool. A Garden Centre previously operated at Lots 5 and 6 Hale Road, approximately 1.5kms to the north-west of the site. This site was subsequently subdivided for residential purposes. In addition, an existing Garden Centre located at Lot 20 Hardey East Road, has subdivision approval and given the taking of the Tonkin Highway road reserve that forms part of Lot 20 is now progressing, this facility will shortly cease to operate and the residential subdivision will proceed.

With the closure of these Garden Centres, which offered a similar range of products to the developing Wattle Grove locality, it is logical that this form of land use can still be made available in the locality via relocation to a more appropriately zoned site which is surrounded by compatible uses.

The proposed Garden Centre will stock a range of landscaping products including bulk supplies (e.g. sand, mulch and gravel), bagged products (e.g. manure, mulch and potting mix), concrete products (e.g. pavers, reconstituted limestone blocks, water features) and garden implements. A detailed product list is contained within **Appendix B** of this report.

3.2 DESIGN AND LAYOUT

A copy of the development plans, including the Development Site Plan and Part Site Plan along with corresponding Landscaping Plans, are contained within **Appendix C**, illustrating the design and layout of the proposed development.

The Garden Centre will be located to the front of the site to enable use of existing buildings and provide convenient access to the public. Development shall be limited to the areas depicted on the Site Plans, which comprises the Application Area. The Garden Centre will consist of the following:

- A car parking area comprising a total of 50 bays within the setback area, fronting Welshpool Road East, complemented by a landscaping strip. 10 additional car parking bays are proposed within the development itself. The formal car parking and access areas shall be of asphalt construction.
- A grassed overflow car parking area at the rear of the proposed Garden Centre development in the event additional car parking is required on occasion.
- Open air display areas of 475m² and 236m² (approximately) for garden ornaments, pots and water features.
- Rehabilitation plantings/landscaping adjacent to Yule Brook where it traverses the north -western part
 of the site.
- A drainage basin adjacent to Welshpool Road East incorporating rain garden component.
- An open air display area (500m²) for limestone blocks, slabs and other concrete products.
- Bagged Products Sales area (435m²).
- A pot and water feature display within the existing stable building.
- Bulk landscaping supplies within storage bins.
- Internal car parking comprising 10 bays adjacent to the sales office. Trailer parking (providing trailers for use by customers) adjoins the internal carpark.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



- A checkout office.
- Storage shed within an existing outbuilding.
- Access/egress via a new full movement cross-over onto Welshpool Road East.

The existing dwelling shall be retained for use by an onsite caretaker.

Floor Plans and Elevations of proposed ancillary buildings are included at Appendix C.

The site plans indicate where buildings are to be retained for use as part of the Garden Centre development or alternatively, removed.

Existing levels on the site grade downwards in a south westerly direction from a height of approximately 25.5m AHD in the north-east part of the Application Area, to approximately 23.3m AHD in the south-west corner of the site adjacent to Welshpool Road East. A copy of a previous Feature Survey of the site is included at **Appendix D** (some structures have since been removed from site) along with a Feature Survey pick up within the Welshpool Road East reserve undertaken to inform detailed engineering design.

A 2.5m high chain wire fence will be located along the 22.5m setback line (excluding the carpark) to provide security after business hours.

3.3 OPERATING HOURS & STAFFING

The proposed Garden Centre will be operated on the following basis:

Opening Hours:	Monday – Saturday	7.00am – 5:00pm
	Sunday (Including Public Holidays)	8.00am – 5.00pm

Six (6) to eight (8) staff members will be employed at the Garden Centre.

3.4 VEHICLES AND ACCESS

The existing crossover from Welshpool Road East will be removed and a new cross-over constructed to accommodate the movement of vehicles into and out of the site. Engineering drawings of the proposed crossover design and minor works required within the Welshpool Road East road reserve are included at **Appendix E.** These engineering drawings have been reviewed and given in principle support by the City's Technical Services section prior to submission of this application.

Trucks servicing the site are described in Table 1 below:

Truck Type	No./Day
Single axle rigid truck – outgoing customer deliveries	20
Semi-trailer/larger rigid trucks – incoming stock deliveries	15

Table 1 - Truck Types

In addition, it is anticipated the business would receive up to 100 customers per day.

This application has also been supported by a Transport Impact Statement (TIS) and informed by a Road Safety Audit (RSA). The TIS is included at **Appendix F** whilst the RSA is provided under separate cover.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



The TIS advises traffic generated by the proposed development would be relatively minimal and as such would have an insignificant impact on the surrounding road network.

Turn path analysis included at **Appendix E** and **F** demonstrates the largest size service/delivery vehicle (a 19m truck) can access the site when travelling eastbound along Welshpool Road East, circulate within the site and exit the site onto Welshpool Road East. No service/delivery trucks will enter the site when travelling westbound along Welshpool Road East. Required modifications/widening of the existing median opening on Welshpool Road East has been identified and allowed for in this development proposal.

3.5 STORMWATER DRAINAGE

A copy of the engineering drawings at **Appendix E** include details of the proposed stormwater management plan for the site, which incorporates a drainage basin and raingarden feature situated adjacent to Welshpool Road East. The City's Technical Services section has reviewed and provided 'in principle' support for the proposed method of stormwater management prior to lodgment of this development application.

3.6 LANDSCAPING

Indicative Landscaping Plans are included in **Appendix C** which have been prepared in consultation with the City's Co-Ordinator of Natural Areas. Key landscaping elements are also illustrated on the Development Site Plan and Part Site Plan.

The stormwater management plan incorporates a rain garden component, which will provide a landscaped feature at the front of the development site adjacent to Welshpool Road East. Indicative details of the rain garden feature are also included at **Appendix E**. As noted on the development plans, landscaping of the rain garden would be in accordance with industry best practice as set out in the document *Vegetation Guidelines for stormwater biofilters in the south-west of Western Australia (2014)*. It is envisaged a condition of development approval would require the preparation and implementation of a detailed landscaping plan.

It is considered the proposed landscaping is commensurate with the intended use of the site and provides for appropriate treatment of the car parking area fronting Welshpool Road East and rehabilitation along both banks of the Yule Brook, whilst having regard to bushfire management considerations. Accordingly, the proposed extent of landscaping satisfies the intent of both clause 5.13.2 (h)(ii) and clause 5.13.2(e) of LPS 3.

3.7 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following Table (Table 2) lists the plant and equipment that will be used for transporting, loading and unloading landscape materials and garden products at the Garden Centre. An Acoustic Assessment prepared in support of the original application is attached at **Appendix G**. The Acoustic Assessment concludes noise levels received at the nearest premises were calculated to comply with the Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997 subject to the following conditions relating to operating times being adhered to:

No delivery of materials and no operations of the large loader and excavator (i.e. equipment used is limited to the mini loaders and forklifts) prior to 09:00am Sundays and Public Holidays and prior to 07:00am weekdays and Saturdays.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



For other time periods, operation of all equipment and delivery of material complies.

The proposed operating times will enable compliance with the above requirement, which can be enforced via a condition of development approval.

Machinery	Number
Front End Loaders	1
14 tonne Excavator	1
Mini Loaders	2
Forklifts	2

 Table 2 – Plant and Equipment

3.8 DUST EMMISSIONS

Dust suppression to the hardstand areas, driveways and bulk landscaping supply storage areas will be achieved through use of sprinklers with water being sourced from an onsite bore. It is noted a groundwater licence (GWL205226.1) has been issued by DWER which provides for use of groundwater for dust suppression.

Further details relating to dust management can be provided as part of a dust management plan required as a condition of development approval.

Given the separation of the nearest dwellings and dust control measures that are normally undertaken for developments of this type, no amenity impacts on surrounding landholdings related to dust emissions are anticipated as a result of the proposed land use.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove

🐠 🔍 Harley Dykstra

4 PLANNING FRAMEWORK

The following rationale provides further support in favour of the proposed Garden Centre.

4.1 METROPOLITAN REGION SCHEME

The subject land is zoned "Rural" under the Metropolitan Region Scheme (MRS) and hence the proposed use is consistent with the intent for the land under the Region Scheme. Land to the south and east of the site is also zoned "Rural" under the MRS. Land to the west and north is generally (with the exception of Lots 1 and 2 Welshpool Road East) reserved for "Parks of Recreation" with a Bush forever designation. Welshpool Road East is reserved as an "Other" Regional Road under the MRS.

4.2 SHIRE OF KALAMUNDA – LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME No. 3

The subject site and surrounding lots, with the exception of the Parks and Recreation reserve to the north, are zoned "Rural Composite" under the Shire of Kalamunda Local Planning Scheme No. 3 (LPS 3). Clause 5.14 of LPS 3 states:

"In this zone it is recognised that there is a mix of semi-rural and commercial land uses which the local government seeks to maintain as a balance in a rural setting. Commercial land uses within the zone will only be considered for approval when it has been demonstrated that the use is appropriate to the area and that the commercial activity will not have a detrimental impact on the surrounding area."

The proposed Garden Centre is consistent with the objectives of the Rural Composite zone as detailed in following sections of this report. The nature of the development and requirement for a relatively large area of land, with good access to a higher order road network, means the proposed use is ideally suited to the rural composite zone rather than within an industrial zone.

4.2.1 LAND USE PERMISSIBILITY

Under LPS 3, a Garden Centre is an 'A' use in the rural composite zone, meaning that the Council may, at its discretion, permit the use after notice of the application has been given in accordance with the advertising requirements detailed in Clause 9.4 of the Scheme.

A Garden Centre is defined as:

"any land or building thereof used for the sale and display of garden products, including garden ornaments, plans, seeds, domestic garden implements and motorized implements and the display, but not manufacture, of pre-fabricated garden buildings.'

The proposed use is entirely appropriate on the site, having regard to the nature of surrounding uses and its location adjacent to a regional road. The proposed use will not have an adverse impact on the amenity of the locality, which is characterized by a number of similar or otherwise compatible land uses and hence is consistent with the intended purpose of the rural composite zone.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



4.2.2 DEVELOPMENT SETBACKS

Proposed development shall be setback in accordance with Table 2 – Site Requirements of LPS 3 and shall achieve a minimum setback of 22.5m from the front boundary (including a 5m wide landscaping strip) and minimum side setbacks of 10m. Due to length of the lot and siting of the Garden Centre towards the front of the site, development shall be well separated from the rear boundary.

4.2.3 CARPARKING ANALYSIS

LPS 3 sets out parking requirements associated with a Garden Centre. **Table 3** below outlines the proposed development in relation to the required parking spaces.

These generic standards are applicable to a more intensive form of operation located within existing urban or industrial areas. Application of these standards to a lower intensity rural based use results in a disproportionate car parking requirement, hence a lower parking provision is considered appropriate (as demonstrated in **Table 3** below).

USE CIASS	CAR PARKING STANDARDS (Scheme Requirements)	CAR PARKING REQUIRED (Scheme Requirements)	CAR BAYS PROVIDED
Garden Centre	2 bays per 100 square metres of display and sales plus 1 bay per staff member	2 x (4,796m² /100): 96 Staff: 8 Total: 104	60

Variation to parking requirements.

Garden Centre – Due to the excessive parking requirements for a Garden Centre in the context of this proposal, it is requested a variation to the normal parking requirements of LPS 3 be supported. It is noted the above carparking calculation includes 2,727m² of landscaping supply bins. If these areas were excluded from the display and sales area calculation, only 50 car bays would be required. It is noted that significant opportunities will be available for informal onsite parking adjacent to display areas and in the unlikely event additional car parking is required, a grassed overflow parking area shall be provided to the rear of the Garden Centre.

The TIS prepared in support of the development application and included at **Appendix F** concurs with the planning assessment that the proposed number of car parking bays is more than sufficient to cater for the needs of the proposed development.

Table 3 – Carparking Standards

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



4.2.4 MAXIMUM NET LETTABLE AREA

Clause 5.13.2 (h)(i) of LPS 3 stipulates that the maximum amount of net lettable area (NIA) for commercial developments within the Rural Composite zone is 300m². A variation of approximately 150m² of NIA has been calculated as part of the assessment of this proposal. This notwithstanding, the proposed garden centre primarily utilities existing buildings (including former stables for the display of garden products pots and water features) which result in an exceedance to the NIA. In any case, the repurposing of these structures for use as part of the garden centre does not represent intensive commercial/retail type uses that would be better suited to a commercial zone and hence the proposal does not bring about any material inconsistency with the intent of Clause 5.13.2 (h)(i).

4.2.5 SERVICE YARD & REFUSE STORAGE

Clause 5.14.7 of LPS 3 requires a suitably designed and screened service yard and refuse storage area to be provided and maintained to the satisfaction of the local government. A concrete pad for a refuse bin is depicted on the development plans behind the existing storage shed which satisfies this requirement.

4.3 SPP 3.7 PLANNING IN BUSHFIRE PRONE AREAS

The objective of SPP3.7 *Planning in Bushfire Prone Areas* is to implement effective, risk based land use planning and development to preserve life and reduce the impact of bushfire on property and infrastructure. The site has been designated bushfire prone under the Department of Fire and Emergency's Bushfire Prone mapping, requiring an accredited Bushfire practitioner to assess the bushfire risk posed to future development on the site.

A Bushfire Management Plan has been prepared for the site and is attached as **Appendix H**. The Bushfire Management Plan confirms the proposed development is able to satisfy all relevant requirements applicable to planning in bushfire prone areas. Based on the site assessment inputs and BAL assessment, all proposed components of the garden centre within the subject site have BAL ratings of BAL-12.5 or lower.

It is envisaged the preparation and implementation of a Bushfire Management Plan would be required as a condition of development approval.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove



5 CONCLUSION

The proposed Garden Centre will be located in the rural composite zone, surrounded by compatible land uses.

This report demonstrates the proposed land use is consistent with regional and local planning Schemes, and will not impact on the amenity of the surrounding landowners, the safety and efficiency of the road network or the environment.

In view of the above-mentioned attributes of the proposal, and the supporting plans and information submitted, it is respectfully requested planning approval be granted for a Garden Centre at Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove.

I trust that the above information and attached plans are satisfactory. However, should you require any further information to facilitate approval, please do not hesitate to contact author of this report.

Application for Planning Approval Lot 150 Welshpool Road East, Wattle Grove

APPENDIX A

Certificate of Title

APPENDIX B

Product List

Garden Centre Product List

Bulk Products

Landscape Mix, Vegie & Flower Mix, Native soil Mix, Special lawn mix, Soil Conditioner, Premium Compost, Mill Direct Pine Bark, Kimberley red mulch, Karri and Peat Mulch, Black mulch, Enviro Mulch, Muja mulch, Fine nature mulch, Wood chips, Pine bark mulch, Jungle Mulch.

Cracked pea gravel, 12mm pea gravel, 18mm pea gravel, road gravel, 10mm Blue metal, 20mm blue metal, blue metal dust, road base, southwest riverstone, 16mm rainbow stone, 20mm rainbow stone, basalt stone, 19mm crushed limestone, Toodyay stone, red spalls, limestone spalls.

Screened topsoil, fill sand, lawn sand, brickies sand, plasterers sand, white sand, quartz sand.

Bagged products

100ltr sheep manure, 30ltr mushroom compost, 30lt blended manure, 30lt chicken manure, 30ltr cow manure, 30ltr karri & Peat, 30ltr woodchips, 30lt pinebark mulch, 30ltr potting mix, 30ltr soil conditioner, 30ltr sheep manure, 30ltr Kimberley red, 30ltr mulching compost, 30ltr black mulch.

20kg Adelaide white, 20kg Exmouth pink, 20kg riverstone, 20kg yellow sand, 20kg white sand, 20kg special lawn mix, 20kg basalt stone, 20kg pea gravels, 20kg blue metal dust.

20kg bentonite clay,100ltr lupin mulch bales, 100ltr triple c bales, Easy wetta granuals 10kg, potting mix 50ltr bag, blood and bone, Turf Perfect 20kg bag. Multi grow, mighty bin bags. River pebbles 15kg.

Fertiliser products

Ant kill Granuals, ant spray, easy wetta hose on, feed and weed, grub and beetle, path weeder, weed kill, all-purpose tub, citrus tub, fertolawn tub, fruits and veg tub, plant tablets tub, pots and plants, rejuven8tor tub, rose tub, super feeder tub, seasol concentrate 1.25lt, power feed concentrate, seasol and power feed, lush lawns spray,

Sealer products

Calicone, Concrete pave sealer, Natural Finish sealer, Clear pond Sealer, Limestone sandstone sealer, Water Based Sealer, wet look sealer, Sika bond cartridge, sika sil cartridge, algaecide 1ltr.

Lighting and pump products

Water feature pumps, small pond lights, tubing, fountain kits, plastic ponds, weedmat, builders plastic.

Concrete products

Pavers, reconstituted Limestone blocks, kerbing, slabs, concrete panels and post, garden steppers. Letterboxes, garden concrete edging, statues, water features, birdbaths, planter boxes, pier capping, capping, masonry pavers, water features, stone cladding, concrete table, concrete benches.

Cement products

Brickies grey, Brickies lite, concrete, cream mortar, hylime, pave mate, grey cement.

Tool products

Wheelbarrows, gloves, caulking gun, trowels, hoes, shovels, prunners, shears, rakes, filter masks, rope, brickies line, tarps. Retic, block lifters

Artificial Lawn products

Majestic Buffalo, winter green, Tennesee cool, tropical cool, turf pegs, turf tape.

Timber products

Railway sleepers, Firewood Bags, garden stakes.

Misc Products

Colourbond garden beds, metal wall art, metal windmills, metal ornaments, plastic ornaments, aluminium edging, shade cloth.

Pot Products

Glazed pots, high fired pots, fibre stone pots, plastic pots, clay pots, limestone pots.